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October 28, 2010 
 
Subject: Letter of Clarification No. 4 to Invitation to Bid No. S50-C23765 for Exterior 

Painting at the George R. Brown Convention Center, located at 1001 Avenida de 
las Americas for the Convention and Entertainment Facilities Department  

 
To: All Prospective Bidders: 
 
This letter of Clarification is being issued for the following reasons:  
 

 To revise the specifications and respond to question posed by prospective 
bidders: 

 
SECTION C - SCOPE OF WORK/SPECIFICATIONS 
 
1)  Remove pages 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 & 15 of 31 and replace with the attached revised 

pages 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 & 15 of 31 marked REVISED 10/28/2010.  
 
2.)  The questions and answers are as follows: 
 
Question #1 Is there plans and elevation of the existing as-built drawings available for 

accurate steel take offs and height verifications prior to bid time? 
 
Answer: No. 
 
Question #2 Is it the cities intentions to make the applicator of the specified product be 

responsible for the labor warranty of the performance of the specified material? 
IE: discoloring, yellowing, streaking, blooming or darkening of the product?  

 
Answer: Yes. 
 
Question #3 Does the City realize the manufacturer of the specified paint product is only 

providing a three year material only warranty? 
 
Answer: The manufacturer provides a two-year labor and material warranty. 
 
Question #4 Could the City only require the applicator of the specified product warrant the 

application only and have the manufacturer warrant the proformence of the 
specified product for labor and material? 

 
Answer: No. 
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Question #5 Could the City consider adding the Devthane clear coat to the specification which 
would enable the manufacturer to provide a three year labor and material 
warranty? 

 
Answer: A different paint has now been specified (See attached revised Scope of 

Work/Technical Specifications). 
 
Question #6 Has the City reviewed or agreed to the manufacturer's written warranty? 
 
Answer: Yes. 
 
Question #7 At the Back side of the building next to the freeway, is the round red vents to be 

painted in this scope of work?   Was not addressed at the walk through. 
 
Answer: Yes. 
 
Question #8 Metal Deck at Loading Dock: 
 

A. It appears to have a lot of high voltage electrical boxes as well as wiring 
attached or near the deck.  Can the deck be power washed without damaging 
the high voltage electrical boxes? 

 
Answer: There are no high voltage boxes in the area.  The area can be power 

washed. 
 
 B.  If the deck can not be power washed, what prep will be required? 
 
Answer: Not applicable. 
 

C. Should the City change the specification for the deck painting to a Alkad 
Dryfall system that can be sprayed on the deck and not brushed and rolled 
this area?  

 
Answer: A dryfall paint has now been specified See attached revised Scope of 

Work/Technical Specifications). 
 
 

D.  Is the painted piping below the deck not included in the scope of work?  Our 
understanding is we are painting the deck only, is that correct? 

 
Answer: Question 1 – no; question 2 - Yes. 
 

E.  For the paint that has not released from the galv., deck what adjustments will 
be made to the warranty to deal with the existing paint adhesion that may 
release within the three year warranty?  

 
Answer: None. 
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F. Are the square light fixtures that are attached to the deck be included in this 
scope of work? 

 
Answer: No. 
 
Question #9 Is the contractor required to power wash the sidewalks, loading dock, and 

driveways to clean the dirt that runs down from the painted structures on the 
building that are being cleaned? 

 
Answer: The work area must be left clean. 
 
Question #10 Will time extension be granted for days that the daily temp does not meet the 

manufacturer recommendations for application? 
 
Answer: Yes. 
 
Question #11 Does the City evaluate the individual company's safety record as part of the 

selection process? 
 
Answer: The past performance of the bidder being considered for award of a bid or 

contract is always a factor in determining whether that bidder is the low 
responsive and responsible bidder. 

 
Question #12 Is there a grading scale for evaluating the proposed company's or is it just a low 

bid evaluation? 
 
Answer: No. 
 
Note: No further questions will be accepted after the publication of this Letter of 

Clarification. 
 
When issued, Letter(s) of Clarification shall automatically become a part of the bid documents 
and shall supersede any previous specification(s) and/or provision(s) in conflict with the 
Letter(s) of Clarification.  It is the responsibility of the bidders to ensure that it has obtained all 
such letter(s). By submitting a bid on this project, bidders shall be deemed to have received all 
Letter(s) of Clarification and to have incorporated them into this solicitation. 
 
Furthermore, it is the responsibility of each Contractor to obtain any previous Letter of 
Clarification associated with this solicitation. 
 

Arturo Lopez 
 
Arturo Lopez 
Senior Procurement Specialist 
832-393-8731 
 
Attachments: Revised pages 6, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14 & 15 of 31 marked REVISED 

10/28/2010. 
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REVISED 10/28/2010 

SECTION B 
SCOPE OF WORK / TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS 

For 
Painting Exterior Areas  

at the  
George R. Brown Convention Center 

 
1.0 Scope of Work 
 

1.1 The Contractor shall furnish all tools, materials, supplies, equipment, permits, scaffolding, 
ladders, labor, insurance, bonds, supervision and transportation necessary to clean and 
paint the exterior areas of the George R. Brown Convention Center, (GRBCC).  The 
areas included are all blue and white exterior steel of the building, and the red air vent 
grills.  Areas included are: 

 a) Balcony structural steel columns – blue. 
 b) Entrance canopies structural steel – blue and white. 
 c) Upper truss and roof area structural steel – blue. 
 d) Loading dock structural steel – blue. 
 e) Ramp structural steel truss – blue. 

f) Painted light and sound fixtures attached to steel. 
 g) Side exhaust grills - red 
 h) Cooling towers - blue steel and red grills. 
 i) Docks B, C, D – white steel deck plates above dock. 
 
1.2 All areas and equipment not being painted must be thoroughly protected and kept clean 

during the project. 
 
1.3 All work performed by the Contractor will be in accordance with the latest City of Houston 

Building Codes and other related City of Houston Standard Construction Specifications.  
In the event that more than one Code or Standard addresses a construction issue, the 
most stringent requirement shall prevail.  It is the responsibility of the Contractor to obtain 
and pay for any necessary permits. 

 
1.4 The work does not include the red ticket booths, red doors or red roll-up doors and door 

jambs. 
 
2.0 Material Specifications 
 

2.1 Paint materials to be manufactured by Devoe High Performance Coatings, GRBCC 
Safety Red, GRBCC blue and white. 
 
2.1.1 Devguard 4160 Mutli-Purpose Tank & Structural Primer for use as a spot 

primer for bare metal. 
2.1.2 Devshield 877 Silicone Alkyd Gloss Enamel for use as an one-coat exterior 

finish. 
2.1.3 Spraymaster Pro Dryfall Flat Primer & Finish 1280-1200 for use as a one-

step primer and finish coat on the galvanized decking in the rear of the 
facility. 

 
3.0 Project Execution 
 

3.1 The Contractor shall perform work as a turn-key project. 
Page 6 of 31 
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maintained in first class condition.    REVISED 10/28/2010 
 
3.11 The Contractor shall protect all areas of the facility using drop clothes, masking or 

other means to ensure no unpainted areas are damaged by over-spray, dust or other 
problems.  Exterior painting and preparation will be performed so equipment or other 
surfaces are not damaged.  

 
4.0 Workmanship Requirements 
 
 4.1 Application:  Skilled craftsmen shall apply these materials.  Execute this work 

in accordance with best practices recognized for the class of work and grade, 
type and kinds of materials specified, only on dry materials and under 
acceptable weather conditions.  Apply paint to manufacturer’s recommended 
film thickness. 

4.2 Drying:  Do not apply a succeeding coat until preceding coat is dry and hard. 
 4.3 Paint:  Use without thinning or adulterating, unless specified by manufacturer. 

4.4 Brushes:  Lay out brush-applied coats to remove all brush marks. 
 4.5 Rollers:  Double roll each coast by cross-rolling in a 90 degree pattern. 
 4.6 Paint film thickness: Not less than 2 wet mils per coat and as recommended by 

the manufacturer. 
 
5.0 Parking Arrangements 
 
 5.1 Parking availability is subject to event requirements.  The Contractor shall arrange 

parking through the GRBCC’s facility management on a daily basis. 
 
6.0 Acceptance and Payment 
 
 6.1 Acceptance and payment are contingent upon completion of the job to the 

satisfaction of the Convention & Entertainment Facilities Department management in 
accordance with all conditions and requirements as detailed herein. 

 
7.0 Performance Time: 
 
 7.1 This project shall be completed within 120 calendar days after receipt of the notice-

to-proceed from the City of Houston. 
 
8.0 Warranty 
 

8.1 Provide a two-year warranty on both materials and workmanship.  The 
warranty period shall commence the date on which the City officially accepts 
the completion of services. 

 
8.2 All warranty work shall be completed without cost to the City within ten calendar days 

after notification of a service problem.  The warranty covers release sag, discoloring, 
yellowing, streaking, blooming, 
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         REVISED 10/28/2010 
 
darkening, or peeling of all painted surfaces.   
 

9.0 Paint Specifications:  DEVOE High Performance Coatings and City of Houston Preasure 
Washer Permit 

 
9.1 DEVGUARD – 4160 
 
9.2 DEVSHIELD – 877 

 
9.3 ICI PAINTS ‘ SPRAYMASTER PRO / UNI-GRIP-WB AQUACRYLIC DRYWALL 

FINISH FLAT PAINT PRIMER & FINISH / 1280-1200 
 

9.4 City of Houston Presure Washer Permit 
 

A PDF version of the Paint Specifications ,COH Preasure Washer Permit and COH Storm Water 
Ordinance can also be viewed on the following web link 

https://purchasing.houstontx.gov/buyer/BidDocumentManager.aspx?id=C23765 
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